
 

AGENDA 

 
 



 

1 
 

 CITY OF HOPEWELL 
Hopewell, Virginia 23860 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor, Ward #7 

Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor, Ward #4 
Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor, Ward #1 

Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward #2 
Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor, Ward #3 

Janice Denton, Councilor, Ward #5 
Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor, Ward #6 

 
John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 

Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 

 

AGENDA 
 

PHONE: 541-2249 
FAX: 541-2248 

 
e-mail: info@hopewellva.gov 

www.hopewellva.gov 
rarrington@hopewellva.gov 

 Date: May 8, 2018 MUNICIPAL BUILDING Closed Meeting:  6:30 p.m. 
Regular Meeting: 7:30 p.m. 

 

OPEN MEETING 

 

6:30 p.m. Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 
 

MOTION: To go into closed meeting for (1) discussion, consideration, and  

interviews of prospective candidates for employment (city attorney); (2) discussion of 

appointment of specific appointees of city council (Ashford Civic Plaza, HRHA); (3) 

discussion of performance of specific appointees of city council (EDA); (4) discussion of 

the acquisition of real property for a public purpose, where discussion in an open 

meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of city 

council (water renewal, cemetery, stormwater); (5) consultation with legal counsel and 

briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining to actual or probable litigation, 

where such consultation or briefing in open meeting would adversely affect the 

negotiating or litigating posture of city council (cemetery), and (6) consultation with 

legal counsel employed or retained by city council related thereto and regarding 

specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel, in 

accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) [three items], (3), (7), and (8), 

respectively. 

 

 Roll Call  

CLOSED MEETING 

 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO VIRGINIA CODE § 2.2-3712 (D): Were only public 

business matters (1) lawfully exempted from open-meeting requirements and (2) identified in the 

closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? 

 

Roll Call 

 

MOTION: To amend/adopt agenda 

 

Roll Call 

mailto:info@hopewellva.gov
http://www.hopewellva.gov/


 

2 
 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

7:30 p.m.   Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 
 
Prayer by Minister Ernest Armstrong of Hopewell, Virginia, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to 
the Flag of the United States of America led by Councilor Mayor Shornak. 
 

Consent Agenda 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be approved 

or received by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent Agenda for 

discussion under the regular agenda at the request of any Councilor. 
 
C-1 Minutes:   
C-2 Pending List:   
C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions:  
C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:   
C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:   
C-6 Routine Grant Approval:  
C-7 Public Hearing Announcement: May 22, 2018;  
C-8 Information for Council Review: Minutes: ARLS April 2018; Electoral Board – 3-28-18, 4-

12-18; Certification of Special Meeting 4-23-18; Hopewell Water Renewal 1-16-18 
C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations: Proclamations: Police Week; Kids to Parks Day 
C-10 Additional Announcements: Award from James River Associates  

 

Public Hearings 

CITY CLERK: All persons addressing Council shall approach the microphone, give name and, if 

they reside in Hopewell, their ward number, and limit comments to five minutes. No person shall be 

permitted to address Council a second time until all others have been heard, and no one may speak 

more than twice on any subject in any one meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to Council as a 

body, any questions must be asked through the mayor only, and there shall be no discussion without 

permission of the mayor. Any person who makes personal, impertinent, abusive, or slanderous 

statements, or incites disorderly conduct in Council Chambers may be barred by the mayor from 

further audience before Council, and removed, subject to appeal to a majority of Council. (See Rules 

405 and 406) 

 

PH-1 Public Hearing on the Fiscal Year 2019 Budget  

 

ISSUE: Council is required to approve and adopt a budget annually.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council approve the FY2019 city budget 

on first of two readings. 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 

 

 



 

3 
 

Communications from Citizens 

CITY CLERK: A Communications from Citizens period, limited in total time to 30 minutes, is part 

of the Order of Business at each regular Council meeting. All persons addressing Council shall 

approach the microphone, give name and, if they reside in Hopewell, their ward number, and limit 

comments to three minutes. No one is permitted to speak on any item scheduled for consideration on 

the regular agenda of the meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to Council as a body, any 

questions must be asked through the mayor only, and there shall be no discussion without permission 

of the mayor. Any person who makes personal, impertinent, abusive, or slanderous statements, or 

incites disorderly conduct in Council Chambers, may be barred by the mayor from further audience 

before Council, and removed, subject to appeal to a majority of Council. (See Rules 405 and 406.) 
 

Regular Business 

Reports of City Manager: 
 

R-1 Virginia Brownfields Restoration and Economic Redevelopment Assistance Fund  

 Program: Site Assessment and Planning Grant 

 

ISSUE:  The grant will allow necessary environmental assessments to be completed to assist 
with redevelopment of the property. Environmental issues associated with the former dry 
cleaner’s site currently creates a challenge to developers.  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends that Council approve the Virginia 
Brownfields Restoration and Economic Redevelopment Assistance Fund Program: Site 
Assessment and Planning Grant and authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement once 
approved by the City Attorney. 

 
MOTION:            

 
              
  Roll Call 

 

R-2 Appropriate $70,000.00 for Fire Department to repair/replace equipment 

 

ISSUE:  The fire station alerting system is in need of replacement. There are two portions to 
that system: dispatch and station. The dispatch side of the system is running on a Windows 
NT machine with proprietary hardware, both of which are no longer supported. Recently we 
have begun to have issues with the system.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends that Council approve the appropriation of 

up to $70,000.00 from uncommitted funds from the Public Safety Buildings project to 

repair/replace the fire station alerting system, and authorize the City Manager to sign 

all documents related thereto. 

 
MOTION:            

 
              
  Roll Call 

  



 

4 
 

R-3 Request from the Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority to rezone property 

 

ISSUE:  The City has received a request from the Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing 
Authority (HRHA) to rezone property identified as Sub-Parcel #’s 042-0095, 042-0195, 
and 042-0252, from R-3, Residential, Medium Density District and B-3, Corridor 
Development District to R-4, Residential.  The properties are located off of Winston 
Churchill Drive between Westover Avenue and Highland Avenue.  
 

 RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends that City Council listen to the presentation, 
review the accompanying documents, and hold a public hearing to receive citizen comments 
on May 22, 2018. No action required by Council at this time. 

 
 

R-4 Request by Freedman Point Limited Partnership for Easement Agreement 

 

ISSUE:  The use of City property by permanent easement to construct and maintain eight (8) 
additional parking spaces is necessary to satisfy the applicable parking requirements for the 
proposed Freedman Point development and provide alternate means of ingress and egress to 
the site at 315 E Cawson St. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends that Council approve the Freedom Point 

Limited Partnership Easement Agreement, and authorize the City Manager to sign the 

Agreement once approved by the City Attorney. 
 

MOTION:            
 
              
  Roll Call 

 
Reports of the City Attorney:   
 
City council rules update—At the last regular meeting, city council suggested reviewing the city 
attorney's proposed changes to the rules, on a rule-by-rule basis, at each meeting when time permits, 
rather than continuing to attempt to tackle the entire project in lengthy, dedicated meetings. One city 
councilor wanted to look specifically at Rule 105. Therefore, the city attorney suggests, beginning 
tonight, a presentation of up to 10 minutes [per current Rule 405(A)] regarding the latest proposed 
changes to the rules. The first proposed changes presented would include the heading and title of the 
rules, and Rules 101 and 105, of which current, redlined, and proposed versions are part of the 
agenda package. If there is a consensus of city council that proposed changes be approved, other 
rules would be presented, in numerical order, for consideration of approval at future meetings. If 
there is no consensus regarding changes to particular rules, a separate work session or work sessions 
would be held on those rules only. Once city council approves all of the rules, by consensus or after a 
work session, the entire set of rules could be adopted.  
 

Reports of the City Clerk:  
 

Reports of City Council: 

 

 Committees  



 

5 
 

 
 Individual Councilors   

Citizen/Councilor Requests 

 

Other Council Communications 

 

Adjournment  



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 

 



PUBLIC HEARING 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

PUBLIC HEARING 
ON THE BUDGET

MAY 22, 2018



  

INFORMATION 
FOR COUNCIL 

REVIEW 
 



























































 
PROCLAMATIONS 

§ 
RESOLUTIONS  

§ 
PRESENTATIONS 

 



Proclamation 
O F F I C E  O F  M A Y O R  J A C K I E  M .  S H O R N A K  

City of Hopewell, Virginia 

Police Week and 
Peace Officers Memorial Day 

Whereas, the Congress and President of the United States have designated May 15 as
Peace Officers Memorial Day, and the week in which it falls as Police Week; 
and 

Whereas, the members of the Hopewell Police Department and the Hopewell Sheriff’s
Office, both have an essential role in safeguarding the rights and freedoms of 
the City of Hopewell; and 

Whereas, it is important that all citizens know and understand the problems, duties and
responsibilities of their law enforcement agencies, and that members of our 
law enforcement agencies recognize their duty to serve the people by 
safeguarding life and property, by protecting them against violence or disorder, 
and by protecting the innocent against deception and the weak against 
oppression or intimidation; and 

Whereas, the men and women of the law enforcement agencies of  Hopewell unceasingly
provide vital public services; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED that the Hopewell City Council declares May 
15, 2018, 

PEACE OFFICERS MEMORIAL DAY 

In honor of those law enforcement officers who, through their courageous deeds, have made 
the ultimate sacrifice in service to their community or have become disabled in the performance of 
duty, and let us recognize and pay respect to the survivors of our fallen heroes. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER PROCLAIMED, that the week of May 9th through 
May 15th, 2018 shall be, 

NATIONAL POLICE WEEK 

And they call upon all citizens of the City of Hopewell to join in commemorating law enforcement 
officers, past and present, who, by their faithful and loyal devotion to their responsibilities, have 
rendered a dedicated service to their communities, and in doing so, have established for themselves 
an enviable and enduring reputation for preserving the rights and security of all citizens. 

N WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be 
affixed the Great Seal of the City of Hopewell in the Commonwealth of 
Virginia  this 8TH day of May, 2018. 

Jackie M. Shornak 
Mayor of the City of Hopewell 

I 



 

Proclamation 
O F F I C E  O F  M A Y O R  J A C K I E  M .  S H O R N A K  

City of Hopewell, Virginia 
 
 
 

 
 

Kids to Park Day 

Whereas, May 19th, 2018 is the eighth Kids to Parks Day organized and launched by the 
National Park Trust; and 
 

Whereas, Kids to Parks Day empowers kids and encourages families to get outdoors and 
visit America’s parks; and 
 

Whereas, children should be encouraged to lead more active lifestyles through visiting 
parks to combat the issues of childhood obesity, diabetes, hypertension, and 
other related health concerns; and 
 

Whereas, Kids to Parks Day is open to all children and adults across the country to 
encourage a large and diverse group of participants; 

Whereas,  
Kids to Parks Day will broaden children’s appreciation for nature and 
outdoors; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jackie M. Shornak, the Mayor of the City of Hopewell, proclaim 

May 20, 2017 as Kids to Park Day, and urge residents of Hopewell to make time May 19, 2018 to take 
the children in their lives to a neighborhood, state or national park. 
 

N WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed 
 the Great Seal of the City of Hopewell in the Commonwealth of Virginia  
 this 8TH day of May, 2018. 

 
  

             
                          Jackie M. Shornak 

Mayor of the City of Hopewell 

I 



ADDITIONAL 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

AWARD FROM JAMES RIVER ASSOCIATION



PUBLIC 
HEARINGS 



PH-1 



Council Action       
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

5-8-18 
PH-1 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    Fiscal Year 2019 Operating Budget Public Hearing 
 
ISSUE:  Council is required to approve and adopt a fiscal year budget annually 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Conduct Public Hearing to Receive Citizen Comment and Input on the 
Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget 
 
TIMING:    A public hearing was advertised for Tuesday, May 8, 2018 
 
BACKGROUND:   On March 28, 2018 the City Manager submitted to City Council a Proposed FY 19 
Operating & Capital Budget. The proposed budget addresses the operational and capital needs required 
for the operation of City services. 
 
The City Manager has held several budget work sessions with both the Finance Committee of Council 
and City Council since the proposed budget original submission to Council.  
 
All efforts to date are in accordance with the budget calendar and the expectation to receive the required 
approval and adoption of a FY 19 Operating Budget. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   The Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget appropriates a total of approximately 
$164,464,105 across 30 funds.  The Proposed General Operating Fund is approximately $52,918,072. 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:  City Manager’s Budget Letter; Budget Advertisement; Proposed FY 19 
Operating Budget Presentation 
 
STAFF:    March Altman, City Manager 
  Michael Terry, Director of Finance 
     
 

 



 



Overview and Highlights 

City Council
City of Hopewell

May 8, 2018

Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget Presentation



Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget
City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018

The framework of the proposed FY 19 Operating Budget is:
 Neither Aggressive – Tax Rate or Fees Increase Driven

 Nor Passive – saying yes to budgetary inclusion that exceeds FY 18 levels (i.e. 
21 new position requests that total approximately $1.6M and other increase 
cost items)

 Fiscally responsible providing adequate funding that will enable City 
Departments to fulfill their mission in rendering of service to the citizens of 
Hopewell



Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget
City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018

The development of the proposed FY 19 Operating Budget 
was developed using a Four (4) Pillar Approach:

1. Assessment – Are we fiscally sound?
2. Analysis – Reviewed prior budget practices & trends.
3. Preservation – Will proposed revenues meet costs?
4. Position – Are we able to handle matters that may arise during FY 19 but are 

not budgeted for?



Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget
City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018

The outcome of deploying this approach resulted a Proposed FY 19 
Operating Budget that:
 Proposed Operational Budget – $164,464,105

Total of 30 funds required for City services
An increase of $3,364,517 or 2.09%

 Proposed General Operating Fund – $52,918,072 
An increase of $151,817 or 0.29% over FY 18

 NO Tax Rate or Fee Increases for FY 19.
 NO Transfer from Unassigned Fund Balance to Balance the Budget
 Remain within the baseline budget equal to the amount of the department adopted FY 18. 
 Mindful of Pending FY 16, FY 17 & FY 18 CAFR completion



Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget
City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018

Highlights of the Proposed FY 19 Budget:
 2% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) - $402,378
 Health care cost increase 4-5% - $150,000
 Mandated Services Funding (Social Services, CSA, etc.)
 No funding for positions (5) on hold until 2016 CAFR completed
 Cap on New Positions – 21 requested, Only 3 recommended
 No New Debt
 Hopewell Public Schools were level funding at FY 18 Adopted Budget Amount - $53,266,720 

(Total) and $14,264,679 (City’s Local Support)
Note:  The General Assembly has not approved FY19-20 Budget therefore the City will have 
to amend the School Board Budget request



Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget
City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018

Other highlights of the proposed budget FY 19 are:
 Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) 2%-Estimated cost $402,378
 Health Care Cost Increase-Estimated cost $150,000
 3 New Positions

Position Title Salary Benefits Total Net Impact

Fiscal Tech CSA New $65,000 $21,419 $86,419 $86,419

Economic Development Program 
Manager

PT to FT $70,000 $22,587 $92,587 $57,857

IT Support Specialist PT to FT $44,268 $16,576 $60,844 $35,571

Totals $179,268 $60,582 $239,850 $179,847



Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget
City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018

Notable Changes in FY 19 Proposed Budget
City Clerk $ 91,953 Addition of Deputy City Clerk Position

City Manager $     292,776 
86,419 Salary & Benefits – Accounting Compliance Fiscal Tech
57,857 Salary & Benefits – Economic Development Program Mgr (Net Increase)

100,000 WODA Project Real Estate Rebate (2-years of Rebate)
48,500   Office on Youth (Youth Programs, Rent & Cleaning, Service Contracts)

Finance $       88,000 
66,000 Salary & Benefit Changes (Includes Class & Comp Implementation in FY 18)
22,000 Real Estate Service Contracts Increases (ProVal and QPUBLIC)



Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget
City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018

Notable Changes (cont.)
Fire $ 600,000 

575,000 Salary & Benefit Changes (6 Add’l Firefighters/Class & Comp Implementation 
in FY 18)

20,000 EMS Service Contracts
5,000 EMS Vehicle Gas

Public Works $ 303,000 
120,000 School Bus Maintenance
83,000 Asphalt Overlay Program
70,000 VDOT Salary Changes (Includes Class & Comp Implementation in FY 18 & 

Higher Starting Salary for New Hires)
15,000 Increase in overtime for VDOT
15,000 Increase in VDOT service contracts



Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget
City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018

Summary of FY 19 Operating Budget
 FY 19 General Fund Budget - $52,918,072 ($151,817 0r 0.29% increase)
 2% COLA - $ 402,378
 Healthcare Cost Increase - $150,000
 3 New FTEs - $179,847 Net Increase



QUESTIONS?

Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget
City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018





























 COMMUNICATIONS 
     FROM CITIZENS 



REGULAR 
BUSINESS 



R-1 



Council action form  11-21-2017        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Councilor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

05-08-
2018 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Virginia Brownfields Restoration and Economic 
Redevelopment Assistance Fund Program: Site Assessment and Planning Grant 
 
BACKGROUND:    
The City of Hopewell Economic Development Authority, with Council’s approval, purchased the former 
Luna’s Restaurant located at 208 E. Cawson Street in October 2016.  The site is adjacent to the former 
Appomattox Dry Cleaner’s location creating underground environmental issues.  The City applied and 
was awarded a Site Assessment and Planning Grant in the amount of $30,000 through Virginia’s 
Brownfields Assistance Fund program operated by the Virginia Economic Development Partnership and 
the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality. 
 
ISSUE:  
Due to environmental issues associated with the former dry cleaner’s site, redevelopment of the Luna’s 
property is currently a challenge to developers despite the site’s proximity to the Beacon Theatre.  The 
awarded grant will allow necessary environmental assessments to be completed providing a clear path to 
redevelopment of the property. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
City Administration recommends Council approval of the Virginia Brownfields Restoration and 
Economic Redevelopment Assistance Fund Program: Site Assessment and Planning Grant and requests 
authority for City Manager to sign such agreement once approved by the City Attorney. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   The table below outlines the items the awarded $30,000 grant will cover. 

Cost Item Amount 
Phase I ESA $3,910 
Asbestos and Lead Based Paint Survey $4,910 
Vapor Intrusion Assessment $9,315 
Phase II ESA  $11,865 

Total $30,000 

 



Council action form  11-21-2017        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Councilor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

05-08-
2018 

 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:    
Aerial of project site 
Notice of award from the Virginia Economic Development Partnership 
 
STAFF: Jake Elder, Economic Development Specialist    







R-2 



____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Y N  Y N  
□ □ Mayor, Jackie M. Shornak Ward #7   □ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2  
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4  □ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3 
□ □ Councilor Christina Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 

□ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 
Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment 

      None (Does not apply ) 

Order of Business: 
Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing         
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business           
Citizen/Councilor Request      

X Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees 

Action: 
Approve and File  

X Take Appropriate Action 
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Approve up to $70,000.00 for Fire Department alerting 
and toning equipment repair/replacement  

ISSUE:  The fire station alerting system is in need of replacement. There are two portions to that 
system. The dispatch portion of the system housed in City Hall, and the station side of the system 
in each station. The dispatch side of the system is running on a Windows NT machine with 
proprietary hardware, both of which are out of support. Recently we have begun to have issues 
with the system not alerting the Fire Department, being slow to alert, double toning, etc.  These 
issues have become more and more frequent requiring a number of troubleshooting visits from 
Commtronics.  

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Appropriation 

TIMING:  Upon Approval of Council 

BACKGROUND:  Commtronics advised us that the system was out of support when we upgraded 
the radio system. At the time we had delayed replacement, as this need would be resolved as part 
of the new fire station project, and the system was operating normally. As the timeline on the 
station project has lengthened, issues with the aging system have begun to present themselves. 
This purchase would replace the dispatch side of the alerting system only, leaving the station side 
to be purchased and installed when the new station is built.  

FISCAL IMPACT: We would like to use uncommitted funds from the Public Safety Buildings 
project. This is a one-time investment in the dispatch side of the fire station alerting system 
replacement, that will both purchase down risk on current system failure, as well as provide the 
dispatch upgrade needed for the new station alerting system.  



____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Y N  Y N  
□ □ Mayor, Jackie M. Shornak Ward #7   □ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2  
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4  □ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3 
□ □ Councilor Christina Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 

□ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   N/A 

STAFF:   Donald Hunter Fire Chief  

SUMMARY:  



R-3 



SUMMARY: 
Y N  Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2  □ □ Mayor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice-Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 
Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment 
None (Does not apply) 

Order of Business: 
Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing         
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business           
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees 

Action: 
Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Presentation regarding a request from the Hopewell 
Redevelopment and Housing Authority to rezone property.  

ISSUE:  The City has received a request from the Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority 
(HRHA) to rezone property identified as Sub-Parcel #’s 042-0095, 042-0195, and 042-0252, from R-
3, Residential, Medium Density District and B-3, Corridor Development District to R-4, Residential.  
The properties are located off of Winston Churchill Drive between Westover Avenue and Highland 
Avenue.  

RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends City Council listen to presentation on the 
request prior to a public hearing.  

TIMING:   City Council is requested to hear proposal at their May 8, 2018 meeting and hold a public 
hearing at the May 22, 2018 meeting. 

BACKGROUND:   The Planning Commission held a public on March 1, 2018 to consider citizen 
comments regarding this request.  The Commission had questions about the proposal and asked Staff to 
meet with representatives from HRHA to discuss.  This meeting took place on March 15, 2018.  The 
HRHA provided a list of voluntary conditions that addressed the concerns voiced by the Planning 
Commission.  The Commission approved the rezoning request, with voluntary conditions at their April 
5, 2018 meeting.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   
 Staff Report
 Letter of  voluntary conditions provided by HRHA
 Map of property

STAFF:          Tevya W. Griffin, Director, Department of DevelopmentHorace H. Wade III, City Planner   



Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority  
Rezoning from R-3 (Residential, High Density) and 
B-3 (Highway Commercial District) to R-4 
(Residential Apartments) 
 
Staff Report prepared for the Planning Commission Regular 
Meeting – March 1, 2018 
Revised April 3, 2018, May 2, 2018 

 
 
This report is prepared by the City of Hopewell Department of Development Staff to 
provide information to the Planning Commission to assist them in making an informed 
decision on this matter. 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARING & MEEETING: 

 
Planning Commission  March 1, 2018 Tabled for more 

information 
Planning Commission 
Meeting 

April 5, 2018 Approved with 
voluntary conditions 
provided by the 
applicant 

 

II. IDENTIFICATION AND LOCATIONAL INFORMATION: 
 

Proposed Zoning: R-4, Residential Apartments 

Existing Zoning: Sub-Parcel #042-0195  is zoned R-3 

Sub-Parcel #042-0095 is zoned B-3  

Parcel Size: Total Acreage: Approximately 3.8 acres 

Owner: Current Owner: AWK & Najma Durrani. Under contract 
with the Hopewell Redevelopment & Housing Authority 

Location of Property: Located between Spruce and Cypress Street between 
Highland and Westover Avenue 

Election Ward: Ward 2 

Land Use Plan Recommendation: 2001 Comprehensive Plan - Residential 

Draft 2028 Comprehensive Plan – Medium Density 
Residential to High Density Mixed Use 

Strategic Plan Goal: N/A 

 

Zoning of Surrounding Property: North: R-4 & M-1 



Page | 2  
 

South: B-3 & R-4 

East:   R-4 & B-3 

West:  M-1 

 

III. EXECUTIVE SUMMUARY: 
The City of Hopewell has received a request from Hopewell Redevelopment and 
Housing Authority to rezone two properties located at 1012 Winston Churchill 
Drive. The property is identified as Sub-Parcels 042-0195 and 042-0095. The 
legal description for Sub-Parcel 042-0195 is Lots 1 through 12, Block 5 and Lots 
1 through 12, Block 7 and Lots 1 through 12, Block 10. The legal description for 
Sub-Parcel 042-0095 is Lots 1-4, Block 3.  The applicant has a contract to 
purchase both properties and as is scheduled to close in the near future. The 
applicant proposal is to rezone the property to R-4, Residential, Apartments in 
order to construct a residential complex with 68 apartments.  

 
IV. FUTURE LAND USE: 
 
 Future land use for this property is designated as Residential in the 2001 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan for the City of Hopewell.  The 2028 Draft 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map designates this area as Neighborhood 
Commercial.  

 
 The Neighborhood Commercial Land Use has the following criteria: 
  
 Residential emphasis with Urban Development Area Designation; High Density 

Single, Attached & Multifamily Residences; Residential Units in Mixed-Use 
Buildings; Live-Work Dwellings 

 
 Typical Density Range:  

Detached – 5-7 DU/AC 
Multifamily – 20-40 DU/AC 
Attached: 10-14 DU/AC 
Mixed Use: Variable Mix & Density by Small Area Plan 
 
Typical Dwelling 500-2000 SF/DU 

 
V. APPLICABLE CODE SECTIONS: 
 

The provisions of the Zoning Ordinance that are germane to this rezoning request 
are found in Article XXI, Amendments, and include the following: 
 
Article XXI-A, Initiation: 
 



Page | 3  
 

"Whenever public necessity, convenience, general welfare or good zoning 
practice require, City Council may amend, supplement, or change this ordinance, 
including the schedule of district regulations and the official zoning map.  Any 
such amendment may be initiated by resolution of City Council, by motion of the 
Planning Commission, or by petition of any property owner addressed to City 
Council." 
 
  Article XXI-B, Action by Planning Commission 

 
1.  No zoning ordinance shall be adopted, amended, or re-enacted unless City 
Council has referred the proposal to the Planning Commission for its 
recommendation.  The commission shall hold at least one (1) public hearing on 
such proposed amendment, after notice as required by Section 15.1-431 of the 
Code of Virginia (1950), as amended.  Following the hearing, the Planning 
Commission shall prepare and by motion adopt its recommendations, which 
may include changes in the original proposal resulting from the hearing, and 
shall transmit such recommendations, together with any explanatory matter, to 
the City Council. 
 
2. In recommending the adoption of any amendment to this ordinance, the 
Planning Commission shall fully state its reasons for any such 
recommendations, describing any change in conditions, if any, that it believes 
makes the amendment advisable and specifically setting forth the manner in 
which, in its opinion, the amendment would be in harmony with the 
comprehensive plan of the city and would be in furtherance of the purpose of 
this ordinance. 
 
Article XXI-B, Action by City Council  

 
Before approving the proposed amendment, the City Council shall hold at least 
one (1) public hearing thereon, pursuant to public notice as required by Section 
15.1-431 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, after which the City 
Council may make appropriate changes or corrections in the proposed 
amendment; provided, however, that no additional land may be zoned to a 
different classification than was contained in the public notice without an 
additional public notice as required by Section 15.1-431 of the Code of Virginia 
(1950), as amended.  An affirmative vote of at least a majority of the members 
of the City Council shall be required to amend or re-enact a zoning ordinance. 

 
Article VI, Residential Apartment District (R-4) – See Attached  

 
 

VI.  SUBJECT PROPERTY: 
 
The subject property is located off on Winston Churchill Drive near Cavalier 
Square Shopping Center across the street from Carter G. Woodson Middle 



Page | 4  
 

School.  It is situated between Highland and Westover Avenue and off of Cypress 
Street. It is approximately 3.8 acres.   
 
Blocks 5, 7 and 10 shown on the map are zoned R-3 and Block 3 is zoned B-3.  
The applicant is requesting the rezoning of all the property to R-4.  The size of the 
property is sufficient to build apartments as proposed. The parcels are not located 
within a Chesapeake Bay Protected area such as the Resource Protection or 
Resource Management area.  Additionally, the property is located in Zone X, as 
identified on the most recent approved FEMA maps.  This means it is in an area 
of minimal flood hazard.  Parcels in Blocks 5 and 7 of the property are fairly flat, 
while parcel in Block 10 has a grade change from 50 to 66.  There are no known 
environmental constraints that would impede the development of the property.  
 

VII. ZONING/STAFF ANALYSIS: 
 
The R-4 Zoning District is a high density, multi-family district.  The current 
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map designates this area as Residential.  The 
current R-3 zoning would allow for multifamily dwelling such as apartments and 
townhouses but with lower density. In the R-3 district multifamily dwellings must 
have a minimum lot area of seven thousand five hundred (7,500) for the first two 
(2) units plus four thousand (4,000) for each additional unit.   
 
The R-4 Zoning District allows the following: two thousand (2,000) square feet 
for each one (1) bedroom dwelling unit, two thousand four hundred (2,400) 
square feet for each two (2) bedroom dwelling unit, and two thousand eight 
hundred (2,800) for each three (3) bedroom dwelling unit. 
 
The applicant is proposing 68 apartment units but has not yet determined the mix 
of bedroom units in the complex.   
 
It has been a priority of the HRHA Board for some time to move the residents of 
the 120 unit Davisville/Bland Court to a more environmentally safe location. This 
development would be the first phase of relocation for residents.  A location for 
the second and last move of residents has not been finalized.   
 
This project will be financed using Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) 
which is administered through the Virginia Housing Development Authority. The 
LIHTC allows for the financing of affordable housing for persons at 40, 50 and 60 
percent of the Area Median Income as assessed in the Richmond Metropolitan 
Statistical Area.  For a family of 4 the income would be as follows: 
 
40% of Area Median Income: $30,960 
50% of Area Median Income: $38,700 
60% of Area Median Income: $46,440 
 
Based on Hopewell Median Income: $78,700.00 Effective Date: 4/14/2017 



Page | 5  
 

*30%: Extremely Low-Income | 50%: Very Low-Income | 80%: Low-Income 
 

Based on the financial eligibility requirements above, current residents of 
Davisville/Bland Court would be eligible to live in the proposed development.  
The applicant could also provide those in Davisville/Bland Court with a housing 
voucher that would allow them to move anywhere in the City, including the new 
development.  Additionally, those outside of Davisville/Bland Court could be 
allowed to reside in the proposed development, similar to the Summitt, where 30 
units were set-aside for previous Langston Park residents, and 26 were market 
rate.  HRHA plans to utilize all units in the proposed development to transition 
residents from Davisville.   
 
There are two financing options when applying for LIHTC; the 4% or 9% credit. 
The latter is more competitive and has a definitive grant cycle each year. The 4% 
credit can be applied for throughout the year.  Both require high quality 
development in regards to material usage (over 60% brick, remaining hardy 
plank), and energy efficiency.   
 
The 2028 Comprehensive Plan identifies this area as high density 
residential/commercial mixed use area using Traditional Neighborhood Design 
(TND).  Staff has discussed this with the applicant who has interest in the TND as 
is willing to explore this option.  In regards to building design the applicant has 
given thought to a single building with multiple floors and first floor covered 
parking. 
 
When considering the request to rezone, the Planning Commission must 
determine if the requested zoning district and the proposed use is compatible with 
the surrounding community.  The Commission should also consider how rezoning 
would affect current conditions, such as traffic, connectivity, parking, etc.   
 

VIII. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The staff recommends approval, with conditions of the rezoning of the subject 
properties from R-3 and B-3 to R-4.  Staff provides this recommendation for the 
following reasons: 
 
1. A portion of the property is already zoned for residential purposes.  The 

proposed zoning, while a higher density, is also for residential use;  
2. The rezoning will provide better quality housing for current tenants of 

Davisville/ Bland Court; 
3. The location removes residents of that community out of an environmentally 

harmful area; 
4. The development will contain no more than 68 units; 
5. The applicant is willing to voluntarily provide a development using 

Traditional Neighborhood Design principles, to include but not limited to, the 
building(s) will be built close the street, there will be sidewalks, walking paths 



Page | 6  
 

and/or bike paths to connect to future pedestrian scale paths developed by the 
City; 

6. The applicant is willing to voluntarily provide the Planning Commission the 
authority to review and approve the design of the building(s), (b) the height 
and number of floors of building(s), (c) the building setbacks and (d) the 
overall site layout; prior to site plan approval; 

7. The applicant is willing to voluntarily provide that the exterior of the building 
will be brick and hardiplank; 

8. The applicant is willing to voluntarily provide that the building will meet the 
energy efficiency requirements for Earthcraft certification; and 

9. The applicant is willing to voluntarily provide that the plans will be discussed 
with the police department to include elements of Crime Prevention through 
Environmental Design.  
 

The applicant has provided a signed letter providing for the voluntary conditions 
provided for in items 4 – 9 above.  
 

IX. PROPOSED RESOLUTION: 
 
In accordance with Article XXI-B, of the Hopewell Zoning Ordinance, the 
Hopewell Planning Commission recommends approval with conditions as 
outlined by HRHA in their letter dated March 28, 2018 of the request submitted 
by the Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority to rezone and amend the 
zoning district map for Sub-Parcels #042-0195 and 042-0095, consisting of 
approximately 3.8 acres from R-3, Residential, High Density and B-3, Highway 
Commercial District to R-4, Residential Apartments in order to build 68 
apartments.  

 













































Council action form  11-21-2017        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Councilor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

05-08-
2018 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Regular Business Agenda Item R-6 
 
BACKGROUND:    
Freedman Point Limited Partnership is seeking to enter into an exclusive, permanent parking 
easement agreement with the City at 330 Appomattox St, also known as Lots 26, 27 and 28, Block 11 
West City Point to allow for the construction and maintenance of eight (8) parking spaces. 
 
ISSUE:  
The use of City property by permanent easement to construct and maintain eight (8) additional parking 
spaces is necessary to satisfy the applicable parking requirements for the proposed Freedman Point 
development and provide alternate means of ingress and egress to the site at 315 E Cawson St. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
City Administration and Engineering recommends Council approval of the Parking Easement 
Agreement and requests authority for City Manager to sign such agreement once approved by the City 
Attorney. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   None 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:    
Parcel ID 0801035 Summary 
Freedman Point Site Plan Dated March 30, 2018 
GIS Overview of Lots 26, 27 and 28, Block 11 West City Point 
Parking Easement Agreement Draft 
 
STAFF:    Austin Anderson, Public Works Engineering – Construction Manager    

 



REZONING OF HIGHLAND PARCEL

HOPEWELL REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY



HRHA VISION 2030

Our mission is to promote adequate and affordable housing, economic 

opportunity and a suitable living environment free from discrimination.

We will be the premiere housing agency for Hopewell and surrounding areas



WHAT WE HAVE 
DONE

• The Summit

• Kippax Place



THE SITE

• Currently zoned for 

approximately 40 apartments

• Currently Forested acreage



OUR PROPOSAL

• Aligned with proposed Comp. Plan

• Mostly Brick Façade

• Traditional Neighborhood Design Elements

• Energy Efficient Design

• Up to 64 apartments

• Approx. $11M in Development



OUR PROPOSAL

• Typical Rents 

• 1 Bedroom $775

• 2 Bedroom $925

• 3 Bedroom $1050

• 4 Bedroom $1160

• Income Mixing

• Individuals and Families at 40%($30,960) , 50%($38,700), and 

60%($46,400) of AMI ($78,700)



Does the rezoning meet the criteria set out in the 

Comprehensive Plan? 



Is the rezoning an improvement to the area?

Does it fulfill a community need? 









 

 

REPORTS  
OF THE 

CITY 
ATTORNEY 

 

 









 

 

REPORTS  
OF THE 

CITY CLERK 
 

 



 
REPORTS OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL 
• COMMITTEES 

• INDIVIDUAL REQUEST 
• ANY OTHER COUNCILOR 



 

ADJOURN 

 
 


	ADPEB32.tmp
	Slide Number 1

	ADP8E01.tmp
	Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority
	Rezoning from R-3 (Residential, High Density) and B-3 (Highway Commercial District) to R-4 (Residential Apartments)

	ADPB881.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3

	Proposed FY19 Operating Budget Presentation - 050818.pdf
	Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget Presentation�
	Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget�City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018
	Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget�City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018
	Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget�City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018
	Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget�City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018
	Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget�City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018
	Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget�City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018
	Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget�City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018
	Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget�City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018
	Proposed FY 19 Operating Budget�City Council Presentation – May 8, 2018




